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Ackiss, Colleen M (DOT)

From: Goldstein, Melissa L (DOT)
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2015 11:49 AM
To: Nelson, Brett D (DOT)
Cc: Heck, Linda K (DOT); Ackiss, Colleen M (DOT)
Subject: SEO COA Approval RE: 62003 Seppala Drive Upgrade - COA
Attachments: 62003 COA 03 02 15.pdf; 62003 Seppala Drive Upgrade figures.pdf

Hi Brett, 
  
Attached please find a copy of the signed Class of Action Consultation Form for the project files.  Based on the 
information provided I concur that the Seppala Drive Upgrade (62003) project would fall under 23 CFR 771.117(c)(26), 
and that it is assignable per the MOU for 6004.  However, keep in mind that this determination may change at a later 
date if there are any changes to the funding sources, if unusual circumstances or significant environmental impacts are 
discovered, or any other issues that may remove the project from assignment under the MOU for 6004. Please note that 
this determination is based in part on the project meeting the conditions in 23 CFR 771.117(e). 
 
Thanks, 
Melissa 
  
  
Melissa Goldstein 
NEPA Program Manager 
Statewide Environmental Office 
Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 
Phone: (907) 465-6961 
 
 

From: Horne, Taylor C (DOT)  
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2015 9:04 AM 
To: Goldstein, Melissa L (DOT) 
Cc: Nelson, Brett D (DOT) 
Subject: FW: 62003 Seppala Drive Upgrade - COA 
 
Hi Melissa, 
 
Can you please take care of this for Brett? 
 
Thanks 
Taylor 
 

Taylor C. Horne 
Statewide Environmental Program Manager 
Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 
3132 Channel Drive, P.O. Box 112500 
Juneau, Alaska 99811-2500 
Phone: (907) 465-6957  Cell: (907) 230-5055 
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From: Nelson, Brett D (DOT)  
Sent: Friday, February 27, 2015 3:20 PM 
To: Horne, Taylor C (DOT) 
Cc: Heck, Linda K (DOT); Ackiss, Colleen M (DOT); Nelson, Brett D (DOT) 
Subject: 62003 Seppala Drive Upgrade - COA 
 
Taylor, 
 
Can you please review and approve the attached COA form for the 62003 Seppala Drive Upgrade project.  Please let me 
know if you have any questions or need more information. 
 
Thanks, 
Brett 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Brett Nelson 
Northern Region Environmental Manager 
Alaska Dept. of Transportation & Public Facilities 
Office (907)451‐2238 
Fax (907)451‐5126 

 







62003: Nome Seppala Drive Rehabilitation 

Nome Airport 

Airport Terminal Road Seppala Drive 

Bering Street 

Center Creek Road 

FAA/Doyle Road 
Nome Airport 

Nome Port 

New Bridge 



62003: Nome Seppala Drive Rehabilitation 

Project Scope:  Realign and rehabilitate Seppala Drive in Nome from 
the intersection of Bering Street to the intersection of Airport 
Terminal Road.   





11/9/2017
Amy L. 
Sumner

Digitally signed by Amy L. Sumner 
DN: cn=Amy L. Sumner, o=DOT&PF, 
ou=NEPA Program Manager, 
email=amy.sumner@alaska.gov, c=US 
Date: 2017.11.09 15:54:24 -09'00'
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Erica Betts

From: Lewis, Steve <steve_b_lewis@fws.gov>
Sent: Monday, May 28, 2018 11:47 AM
To: Erica Betts
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Bald Eagle nest locations

Hi Erica, 
 
Definitely no issue with golden eagle nests there and I'm pretty sure no issue with bald eagles either. 
 
Steve 
 
On Fri, May 25, 2018 at 5:15 PM, Erica Betts <EricaBetts@pdceng.com> wrote: 

Steve, 

Thank	you	so	much	for	the	response.		The	projects	will	repair	existing	roads,	Seppala	Drive	(from	Nome	Airport	
into	town),	Port	Road	connecting	the	Port	of	Nome	to	town,	and	Bering	Street.		The	projects	are	within	existing	
ROW.		 

	 

Have	a	great	holiday	weekend. 

	 

Erica Betts  
Lead Environmental Analyst 

  

PDC INC. ENGINEERS 

1028	Aurora	Drive,	Fairbanks,	Alaska	99709	|	907.452.1414 

	 

From: Lewis, Steve <steve_b_lewis@fws.gov>  
Sent: Friday, May 25, 2018 3:08 PM 
To: Erica Betts <EricaBetts@pdceng.com> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Bald Eagle nest locations 

  

Hello Erica, 

  

Thanks for your note.   
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As far as I know, there are no documented Bald Eagle nests in the Nome area.  At this time, that may be a little 
far north for them but I would guess they are moving that way.  Depending on where your projects are located, 
Golden Eagle nests could be an issue.  There are quite a few of them on the Seward Peninsula.  They are 
mostly on cliffs but also rock outcrops and bluffs.  I wouldn't expect them in the city limits itself, but not that 
far outside of town.  Unfortunately, I do not have a good database of Golden Eagle nests.   

  

Perhaps you can give me a better idea of what the project entail? 

  

Thanks, 

  

Steve 

  

On Thu, May 24, 2018 at 3:58 PM, Erica Betts <EricaBetts@pdceng.com> wrote: 

Hello, 

I	am	assessing	environmental	impacts	for	a	couple	of	transportation	projects	in	Nome,	Alaska	and	am	
trying	to	determine	whether	Bald	eagle	nests	are	located	nearby.		If	you	are	aware	of	any	information	
regarding	eagle	nest	locations	in	Nome,	please	let	me	know. 

Thank	you	so	much	for	your	time, 

	 

Erica Betts  
Lead Environmental Analyst 

  

PDC INC. ENGINEERS 

1028	Aurora	Drive,	Fairbanks,	Alaska	99709	|	907.452.1414 
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--  

Stephen B. Lewis 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

3000 Vintage Blvd., Suite 240 

Juneau, AK 99801 

907-780-1163; steve_b_lewis@fws.gov 

 
 
 
 
--  
Stephen B. Lewis 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
3000 Vintage Blvd., Suite 240 
Juneau, AK 99801 
907-780-1163; steve_b_lewis@fws.gov 



Location Hydraulic study 

Seppala Drive Upgrades 

Project No. Z620020000/00S828 

 

Keith Hanneman, P.E., Principal 

May 2, 2018 

 

The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF) has assumed the 

responsibilities of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) under 23 U.S.C. 327, and is proposing 

to rehabilitate Seppala Drive in Nome.  The purpose of the proposed project is to improve safety, extend 

the service life of the roadway, and provide pedestrian facilities. 

Seppala Drive connects the airport in Nome with the city center. Seppala also serves as a connector to the 

Port of Nome. The road extends from Bering Street to the Airport Terminal Road for a distance of 1.3 

miles, all of which is paved. Foot and bicycle traffic is frequent along Seppala Drive which has sidewalks 

from Bering Street to E street.  

Proposed safety improvements and road repairs include the following: 

 Reconstruct and pave Seppala Drive from Bering Street to the Airport, including select subgrade 

improvements. 

 Replace and construct pedestrian improvements along Seppala Drive.  Improvements include 

replacing sidewalk on both sides of Seppala Drive between Bering Street and F Street, adding 

sidewalk on the south side of Seppala Drive from F Street to Prospect Place, and adding a 

separated path from Prospect Place to the airport. One or more portions of the separated path 

between Prospect Place and the airport may require a widened shoulder due to space limitations. 

 Repair sinkhole near F Street. 

 Widen the northern road shoulder between F Street and the curve west of Belmont Street. 

 Replace existing 6-foot diameter Dry Creek culverts. This includes raising the height of Seppala 

Drive to prevent the flow of water over the road surface during storm surges. New culverts will 

be larger diameter and longer than existing to accommodate added embankment and a portion of 

Dry Creek will require realignment.  

 Raise profile grade between Jafet Road and Center Creek Road to improve sight distance and 

turning movement. 

 Install intersection lighting. 

 Replace guardrail. 

 Widen Seppala Drive to the north in order to accommodate pedestrian improvements west of 

Center Creek Road.  Add slope protection to the south along the Snake River.  

 Replace damaged 36-inch diameter culvert at Center Creek. 

 ROW acquisition may be needed along the project corridor. 

 Relocate or repair utilities impacted by the project. 

 

This project requires consideration of general criteria presented in Executive Order (EO) 11988, which 

mandates agencies to take floodplain encroachments into account when evaluating any water and land use 

plans. This Location Hydraulic Study fulfills the requirements of 23 CFR 650. The Provisions of CFR 

650. Subpart A "Location and Hydraulic Design of Encroachments on Flood Plains" apply to all 

encroachments and to all actions which affect base flood plains. The project is located within a National 

Flood Insurance Program regulated floodplain.  The attached FIRM panel (Panel 0043C and 0039C, Map 

revised May 3, 2010) shows that the majority of Seppala Drive lies within Zone AE. Zone AE on the  



identified FIRM panel identifies the base flood elevation as 15 feet as referenced to the MLLW Tidal 

Datum.   

 

Risks Associated with the Implementation of the Action 

 

The risks associated with the project are low. In this context, “risk” means the consequences associated 

with the probability of flooding attributable to the encroachment. An “encroachment” is an action within 

the limits of the base flood plain.  The slope protection to be added to Snake River is intended to replace 

flood related erosion that has occurred along the outside of the bend just upstream of the Snake River 

bridge.  This erosion could potentially undermine the existing road and planned pedestrian facilities along 

this portion of Seppala Drive. The road will be widened to the North to further accommodate these 

facilities. The slope protection would therefore not extend into or increase historic flood potential.  Two 

portions of Seppala Drive will be raised.  One portion, centered at Center Creek Road, will allow for a 

smoother grade change and safer turning between the two intersections at Center Creek Road and Seppala 

Drive as well as Seppala Drive and the Snake River bridge.  The grade level increase at Center Creek 

Road will be approximately 4 feet and will put this section of road above the 15 foot base elevation on the 

FIRM panels.  The raised area will tie into existing grade just before the Center Creek culvert. At this 

location the road surface is below the base flood elevation. The Center Creek culvert (west of Center 

Creek Road) will be replaced as part of this project and will be assessed during design for proper sizing.  

The second grade raise will occur at the Dry Creek crossing.  It has been reported that water overtops the 

embankment and crosses Seppala Drive during high flow events.  In order to reduce this occurrence, the 

road will be raised by 1.4 feet. According to the NOAA tidal gauge data located on the Nome Port 

causeway, this will put the road surface elevation above the highest high tide level with one foot of 

freeboard. The exact culvert configuration will be determined during project design but it will be designed 

to convey 100-year design flows as well as satisfy fish passage criteria. A hydrology and hydraulics 

report will be prepared during design of the Dry Creek culverts.  

 

Impacts on Natural and Beneficial Flood Plain Values 

 

"Natural and beneficial flood-plain values" include, but are not limited to fish, wildlife, plants, open 

space, natural beauty, scientific study, outdoor recreation, agriculture, aquaculture, forestry, natural 

moderation of floods, water quality maintenance, and groundwater recharge. The project should not 

significantly impact the natural and beneficial flood plain values. The DOT&PF has minimized the 

footprint of the project to the extent practicable.  By replacing the existing Dry Creek culverts, this project 

will improve the hydrologic connectivity of the Dry Creek and Bourbon Creek with the Port of Nome.  

 

Support of Probable Incompatible Flood Plain Development 

 

This project does not include any new development within the flood plain.  Raising the Dry Creek 

crossing will require additional embankment fill as will bank stabilization measures along Snake River.  

This project will not encourage or otherwise facilitate additional development within the base flood plain. 

 

Measures to Minimize Flood Plain Impacts Associated with the Action 

 

"Minimize" means to reduce to the smallest practicable amount or degree, and "practicable" means 

capable of being done within reasonable natural, social, or economic constraints. DOT&PF routinely does 

the following on highway design projects: 
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 Essential Fish Habitat Worksheet  
 

DOT&PF EFH Worksheet 
May 2014  Page 1 of 5 

I.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Project Title: Seppala Drive Upgrades Project #: Z620030000/00S828 

Project Location (include region):  Nome, Alaska Date Prepared:  7/12/2018 

Brief Project Description: The Seppala Drive Upgrades project proposes to rehabilitate the full length of Seppala Drive, approximately 1.3 miles in length, 
between Bering Street and Airport Terminal Road. Work includes pavement rehabilitation, roadside hardware, drainage improvements, intersection 
improvements, ADA improvements, and utilities. Work also includes widening of the road in some places to accommodate pedestrian facility improvements. 
One such location occurs between the airport and Center Creek Road. The road will be moved to the North toward airport property in order to accommodate 
pedestrian facilities to the South.  The Snake River has eroded portions of the embankment along this section of Seppala Drive. The project proposes to add 
slope protection in the form of riprap along this segment.  See the attached figure for location. Seppala Drive will be raised along the crossing of Dry Creek to 
prevent overtopping of the road during high storm surge events and near the Snake River bridge to eliminate the steep grade leading to the intersection with 
Center Creek Road. The work along Dry Creek will include widening the embankment, replacing the Dry Creek culverts, and realigning Dry Creek adjacent to 
the embankment. 

 

II.   DESCRIPTION OF ESSENTIAL FISH HABITAT AND PROJECT ACTIVITIES: 

 

Waterbody Species 
Habitat Function 

Project Activity Affecting Water Body* 
Spawning Rearing Migration 

Snake River Pink and Sockeye    Stream embankment work 

Dry Creek Coho salmon    Culvert replacement, channel realignment 

                     

                     

                     

 

*Types of activities that may involve EFH and require a Fish Habitat Permit include, but is not limited to, culverts, bridges, stream crossings, stream embankment 

work, stream relocations, boat ramps, water withdrawal, gravel extraction, and use of explosives. 
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III.   CONSERVATION MEASURES PROPOSED TO AVOID, MINIMIZE, OR REDUCE POTENTIAL ADVERSE IMPACTS ON 

EFH  

 

A.  Conservation measures implemented for culvert, bridge, and other activities involving EFH.  

 

Conservation Measure Culvert Activities Bridge Activities 

Other Activities (e.g. stream 
crossings, stream embankment 
work, stream relocations, boat 

ramps, water withdrawal, 
gravel extraction, and use of 

explosives) 

Culverts will be sized, constructed, and maintained in 
compliance with the culvert guidelines contained in the 
August 2001 ADF&G and the ADOT&PF Fish Pass 
Memorandum of Agreement and/or the 2011 NMFS 
Northwest Region’s Anadromous Salmonid Passage 
Facility Design.   

 NA NA 

Replacement structure will be designed to avoid 
encroachments into the active stream channel.   

NA  NA 

Replacement structure will be designed to minimize 
encroachments into the floodplain. 

NA  NA 

The construction contractor will be required to comply 
with the conditions outlined in the Fish Habitat Permit     

   

Seasonal restrictions, as defined by ADFG, for in-water 
work will be followed. 

   

In-water construction will be avoided or minimized.    

Only native vegetation will be used in stabilization 
plantings.   

   

The construction contractor will be required to comply 
with an APDES permit 

   

 

 List other conservation measures: 

      

B.  Explain selections in III. A. and provide other relevant information that will support a conclusion of No Adverse Effect to EFH:   

http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/license/uselicense/pdfs/dot_adfg_fishpass080301.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/license/uselicense/pdfs/dot_adfg_fishpass080301.pdf
http://www.westcoast.fisheries.noaa.gov/publications/hydropower/fish_passage_design_criteria.pdf
http://www.westcoast.fisheries.noaa.gov/publications/hydropower/fish_passage_design_criteria.pdf
http://www.westcoast.fisheries.noaa.gov/publications/hydropower/fish_passage_design_criteria.pdf


http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title50-vol10/pdf/CFR-2011-title50-vol10-sec600-920.pdf
http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/pdf/preparingefhassessments.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title50-vol10/pdf/CFR-2011-title50-vol10-sec600-920.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title50-vol10/pdf/CFR-2011-title50-vol10-sec600-920.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title50-vol10/pdf/CFR-2011-title50-vol10-sec600-920.pdf
http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/pdf/efhconsultationguidancev1_1.pdf
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Worksheet Instructions 

This worksheet provides information for assessing the potential for adverse effects to Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) as required under the Magnuson-

Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act (MSA).  This worksheet will allow for the efficient and consistent analysis of DOT&PF actions 

with the potential for involvement with EFH.  

Objective 

The objective of this EFH worksheet is to determine: 

 If the proposed action, after consideration of proposed conservation measures, may adversely affect designated EFH for the relevant 

fisheries species within the proposed action area; and 
 

 If EFH consultation with National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) is required under the MSA.  

Definitions 

Essential Fish Habitat – EFH is defined as the waters and substrate necessary to fish for spawning, breeding, feeding or growth to maturity.  

Regulations for implementing the MSA are at 50 CFR 600.905 – 930. 

Adverse Effect – An adverse effect is any impact that reduces the quality and/or quantity of EFH.  Adverse effects may include direct or indirect 

physical, chemical, or biological alterations of the waters or substrate and loss of, or injury to, benthic organisms, prey species and their habitat, 

and other ecosystem components, if such modifications reduce the quality and/or quantity of EFH.  Adverse effects to EFH may result from actions 

occurring within EFH or outside of EFH and may include site-specific or habitat-wide impacts, including individual, cumulative, or synergistic 

consequences or actions.   

Worksheet NOTE   

While the Adverse Effect definition appears to offer a broad application, the intent is to consult with NMFS for only those actions that would 

remove, disturb, impede, or eliminate fish habitat.  The net effect of the action should be considered after the implementation of all conservation 

measures.   

This worksheet outlines conservation measures appropriate for culvert and bridge related actions that, if followed, will generally result in “no 

adverse effect” to EFH (see Section III).   These measures were developed using the NMFS publication, “Impacts to Essential Fish Habitat from 

http://alaskafisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/efh/nonfishing/impactstoefh112011.pdf
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Non-fishing Activities in Alaska”, November 2011 and through informal consultation with NMFS staff.  This worksheet can also be used for other 

types of ADOT&PF actions with the potential for EFH involvement.   

If a conclusion of “no adverse effect” is reached through the incorporation of conservation measures it will be necessary to ensure that these 

measures are added to the environmental documentation and implemented during the construction phase of the project.  It is important to 

evaluate actions for special or unusual circumstances and add additional conservation measures if needed to avoid an adverse effect.  Consultation 

with NMFS is required for any adverse effects to EFH. 

*Indicate any EFH species that may be affected.   

EFH has been described for over 50 fish species, including Pacific salmon and various species of groundfish. Freshwater EFH for Pacific salmon 

species is identified in the ADF&G’s Catalogue of Waters Important for the Spawning, Rearing, or Migration of Anadromous Fishes (ADF&G 1998a) 

(Catalog).  Marine waters identified as EFH for salmon and groundfish include estuaries, bays, fjords, and offshore waters out to the 200 nautical 

mile Economic Exclusive Zone (EEZ) boundary. Pacific salmon species will be most commonly associated with DOT&PF projects. 

EFH descriptions and maps can be found on the NMFS Alaska Regional Office EFH website:   

Species:  http://www.alaskafisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/efh/faq.htm#species 

Mapper:  http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/protection/efh/habitatmapper.html.   

 

http://alaskafisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/efh/nonfishing/impactstoefh112011.pdf
http://www.alaskafisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/efh/faq.htm#species
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/sf/SARR/AWC/index.cfm?ADFG=maps.interactive
http://www.alaskafisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/efh/faq.htm#species
http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/protection/efh/habitatmapper.html
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Erica Betts

From: Jensen, Melissa L (DOT) <melissa.jensen@alaska.gov>
Sent: Friday, March 08, 2019 1:40 PM
To: Erica Betts
Cc: Johnston, Christopher F (DOT)
Subject: FW: SEO Section 4(f) No Use Determination RE: Z620030000Nome Seppala Drive 

Upgrades 4(f) consultaion
Attachments: Z620030000 Seppala Drive Upgrades_4f Applicability.pdf; 62003_Seppala 

Drive_Upgrade_SHPO_Coordination.pdf

 
 

From: Goldstein, Melissa L (DOT)  
Sent: Friday, March 08, 2019 1:38 PM 
To: Nelson, Brett D (DOT) 
Cc: Jensen, Melissa L (DOT) 
Subject: SEO Section 4(f) No Use Determination RE: Z620030000Nome Seppala Drive Upgrades 4(f) consultaion 
 
Hi Brett, 
 
Based on the information provided in the attached documents, I agree that the Seppala Drive Upgrades (Z620030000) 
project will not affect Anvil City Square, which is a Section 4(f) protected resource located near the project area. The 
project will not result in a permanent incorporation, temporary occupancy, or constructive use of the park. 
 
DOT&PF has determined that the proposed project will not use any Section 4(f) properties. Therefore, the requirements 
of Section 4(f) do not apply. 
 
While a portion of the project will occur within the boundary of the Nome Subsurface Historic District (NOM‐00158,) 
that cultural resource is not listed nor has it been determined to be eligible for listing on the NRHP and is therefore not 
currently a Section 4(f) protected resource. 
 
Please ensure a copy of this email is placed in the project file. 
 
Thanks, 
Melissa 
 
 

Melissa Goldstein 
NEPA Program Manager 
Statewide Environmental Office 
Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 
Phone: (907) 465-6961 
 
 
The environmental review, consultation, and other actions required by applicable Federal environmental laws for this project are 
being, or have been, carried out by DOT&PF pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 327 and a Memorandum of Understanding dated November 3, 
2017 and executed by FHWA and DOT&PF. 

 

From: Nelson, Brett D (DOT)  
Sent: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 10:54 AM 
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To: Goldstein, Melissa L (DOT) 
Cc: Jensen, Melissa L (DOT); Nelson, Brett D (DOT) 
Subject: FW: Z620030000Nome Seppala Drive Upgrades 4(f) consultaion 
 
Hi Melissa, 
 
Can you please review the attached Section 4(f) applicability write‐up.  Let us know if you have any questions or need 
additional information for your review. 
 
Thanks, 
Brett 
 

Brett Nelson 
Northern Region Environmental Manager 
Alaska Dept. of Transportation & Public Facilities 
2301 Peger Road / Fairbanks, AK  99709 
Office (907)451‐2238 
Fax (907)451‐5126 

 

From: Jensen, Melissa L (DOT) <melissa.jensen@alaska.gov>  
Sent: Monday, March 4, 2019 2:04 PM 
To: Nelson, Brett D (DOT) <brett.nelson@alaska.gov> 
Subject: Z620030000Nome Seppala Drive Upgrades 4(f) consultaion 
 
Brett, 
 
I have attached the documents for 4(f) consultation. Can you please review to send off to Melissa? 
 
Thanks,  
Missy 



Z620030000 Seppala Drive Upgrades 
Section 4(f) Applicability 

 
Project Description 
The Seppala Drive Upgrades project proposes to rehabilitate the full length of Seppala Drive, 
approximately 1.3 miles in length, between Bering Street and Airport Terminal Road. Work includes 
pavement and pavement structure rehabilitation, roadside hardware, drainage improvements, 
intersection improvements, ADA improvements, and utilities. Work also includes widening of the road 
or a separate pathway in places to accommodate pedestrian facility improvements. The proposed work 
for Seppala Drive includes the following: 

• Reconstruct and pave Seppala Drive from Bering Street to Airport Terminal Road, including 
select subgrade improvements. 

• Replace and construct pedestrian improvements along Seppala Drive.  Improvements include 
replacing sidewalk on both sides of Seppala Drive between Bering Street and F Street, adding 
sidewalk on the south side of Seppala Drive from F Street to Prospect Place, and adding a 
separated path from Prospect Place to the airport. One or more portions of the separated path 
between Prospect Place and the Airport may require a widened shoulder due to space 
limitations. 

• Repair sinkhole near F Street. 
• Widen the northern road shoulder between F Street and the curve west of Belmont Street. 
• Replace existing 6-foot diameter Dry Creek culverts. This includes raising the height of Seppala 

Drive to prevent the flow of water over the road surface during storm surges. New culverts will 
be larger diameter and longer than existing to accommodate added embankment and a portion 
of Dry Creek will require realignment. 

• Raise profile grade between Jafet Road and a few hundred feet west of Center Creek Road to 
improve sight distance and turning movement. To match this grade will require tying into Center 
Creek Road approximately 322 feet. 

• Install intersection lighting at Jafet Road. 
• Replace guardrail. 
• Widen Seppala Drive to the north in order to accommodate pedestrian improvements west of 

Center Creek Road.  Add slope protection to the south along the Snake River between the old 
bridge location and Jafet Road.  

• Replace damaged 36-inch diameter culvert at Center Creek. 
• ROW acquisition will be needed along the project corridor. 
• Relocate or repair utilities impacted by the project. 

 
Section 4(f) Involvement 
Anvil City Square is a park located along Bering Street between W 3rd Avenue and Warren Place, just 
beyond the east end of the project.  That places it adjacent to the Seppala Drive terminus at Bering 
Street (shown on APE map in attached SHPO packet). Anvil City Square is an approximately 1.9 acre 
open green space in the heart of Nome. It features statues with local historical significance including 
bronze statues, an 18-foot high gold pan, an umiak display, and dredge buckets. It also features a 
playground focused for children ages 2 through 12 years old. Anvil City Square houses Old St. Joe’s hall, 
the 1901-built and oldest standing building in Nome, important for its age, architecture, and role it 
played during Nome’s early history. The property is used for recreation and community gatherings. The 



City of Nome Department of Parks and Recreation oversees the management of this park. It is open 
year-round with pedestrian and vehicle access. 
 
Effects to Section Properties 
The Seppala Drive Upgrades project will end just before the intersection with Bering Street, 
approximately 50 feet from the park boundary.   
• Permanent Incorporation: The proposed project would not require the acquisition of additional 

ROW or incorporation of land from the park into a transportation facility. 
• Temporary Occupancy: The proposed work will require no temporary occupancy of the park.  
• Constructive Use: The proposed project was evaluated against the five situations listed in 23 CFR 

774.15(e)(1-5) to determine whether it would meet any of the five situations that constitute a 
constructive use: 

o Noise Interference: The proposed project would not increase capacity or make other 
substantial changes to the existing roadway that would result in an increase in traffic noise. 
There may be a temporary increase in noise levels during construction, but that will not 
impact the designated use of the park. 

o Aesthetic Impairment: All work would remain consistent with the existing characteristics and 
would not change the aesthetic features or attributes of features adjacent to the park. 

o Access Restriction: The proposed project would not result in a restriction of access to the 
park.  Access to the park will remain open throughout project construction. 

o Vibration Impact: During construction, the proposed project has the potential to cause 
temporary vibration impacts from equipment use; however, due to the nature of proposed 
work, equipment is not expected to remain in any portion of the project area for an 
extended period of time. As such, the proposed project would not involve extensive periods 
of vibration during construction that could substantially impair park facilities. 

o Ecological Intrusion: The proposed project would be limited to the existing DOT&PF ROW in 
the areas adjacent to the park. All work would remain consistent with the existing 
characteristics. No wildlife or waterfowl refuges are located adjacent to the proposed 
project area. 

 
Furthermore, a portion of the Seppala Drive Upgrades project will occur within the boundary of the 
Nome Subsurface Historic District (NOM-00158). DOT&PF found that no historic properties would be 
affected by the project under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and SHPO concurred 
with that finding on January 8, 2019 (attached). 
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